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COLORADO CULTURAL RESOURCE SURVEY | .. —

____Determined Eligible - National Register
____Determined Not Eligible - National Register
___ Determined Eligible - State Register
____Determined Not Eligible - State Register

__ Need Data

____Contributes to Eligible National Register District

Architectural Inventory Form

Noncontributing to Eligible National Register District

1. Resource Number: SDAO0688

2. Temporary Resource Number: 755

3. County: Douglas

4. City: Castle Rock

5. Historic Name: Douglas County Lumber Company

6. Current Building Name: The Barn - Antiques and Specialty Shops

7. Building Address: 400 Third Street

8. Owner Name and Address: M & R Enterprises; 1751 Mesa Ridge Lane, Castle Rock, CO 80108

44, National Register Eligibility: Not Eligible

44A. Local Landmark Eligibility: Eligible
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Temporary Resource Number: 755

Il. GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION

9. PM: 6TH Township: 8§ Range: 67W
1/4 of SW 1/4 of SW 1/4 of NE 1/4 of NW of Section: 11
10. UTM Reference Zone: 13 Easting: 512209.0 Northing: 4358079.0
11. USGS Quad Name: Castle Rock South Map Scale: 7.5' MapYear:  1965/1994
12. Lot: 1 Block: 21 Addition:  Town of Castle Rock
12A. Historic Neighborhoods: Central Downtown
Downtown Conservation Area: South Perry
13. Boundary Description: The property is bounded on the west by a public sidewalk and Perry Street; on
the north by a public sidewalk and Third Street; on the east by 420 Third Street
(5DA.2666).
lll.  ARCHITECTURAL DESCRIPTION
14. Building Plan: Rectangular Plan
15. Dimensions in Feet: 100' x 56'
16. Stories: Two
17. Wall Material: Wood/Horizontal Siding
18. Roof Configuration: Front Gabled Roof
19. Roof Material: Composition Roof
20. Special Features: Chimney
21. Architectural Description:

The building is a front gable heavy timber framed barn. The plan is rectangular with a long central hall that runs
north to south. Large openings with overhead doors are located at either end. On either side of the central
portion of the building, there are shed roof extensions. The roof of the central portion extends higher than the
adjacent shed roof extensions, allowing for clerestory windows. The lower roofs have six skylights. The higher
gable roof has a large metal frame which at one time supported the business sign for the building. The west
elevation also has a brick chimney puncturing through the lower roof and extending through the upper gable
roof. Further to the south is a non-historic metal flue.

North Fagade: This is the primary entrance into the building. There is alarge overhead door centered on this
elevation with a smaller man door located in the west portion of the east shed roof extension. Both wings have
large 28-lite fixed windows with red 1x wood trim. Above, there are two 6/6 double hung (plastic grid) wood
windows centered on the elevation with a double hung divided lite window to the west and a four-lite fixed

window to the east.

East Elevation: The east elevation faces a warehouse yard and has five sliding wood doors clad in the same
horizontal wood siding. The north door has a six-lite divided lite window centered in the door. There is a man
door at the south end of the elevation. Above, there are six four-lite awning style, clerestory windows above
with 1x wood trim.

South Elevation: The south elevation is similar to the north elevation with a large overhead door centered on the
elevation with four six-lite wood windows above. There is also a six-lite fixed window on the west end of the

shed roof extension.

West Elevation: There is a large 20-lite wood window on the north end of this elevation. Further south, nearly
centered on the elevation, there is another 20-lite window flanked by a pair of four-lite double hung windows.
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22.
23.

24.

All windows have 1x painted wood trim. Further to the south, there are sliding wood doors, similar to those on
the east elevation. Several of the doors are punctured with small wood windows.

Architectural Style: No Style

Landscape or special setting features:

There is no landscape on this property except where the Town has created planting beds along Perry Street with
large river rock, low growing evergreen shrubs, and ornamental deciduous trees.

Associated buildings, features, or objects:

There are two associated buildings located to the south of this building. They were constructed to provide an
extension to the building. The buildings are green houses with opaque roofs, ribbon windows, and gable roofs
that run north to south. The north end of these buildings are attached to the south elevation of the barn. There
are large swamp coolers on structural steel frames attached to the south elevations of these buildings. There is
a warehouse that is historically associated with the building but is no longer a part of this property due to the
subdivision. The warehouse was constructed at the same time as the "barn”, in 1905, and is intact except for an
addition that was constructed between 1914 and 1930. A coal shed was removed between 1949 and 1985.
There is another building, the grain elevator, that is historically associated with this building, but was later
associated with the Castle Rock Fuel and Feed. A description of that building can be found on the Castle Rock
Fuel and Feed Inventory Sheet (5DA.2666).

iV. ARCHITECTURAL HISTORY

25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

Date of Construction: Estimate: Actual: 1905

Source of Information: Douglas County Record - October 7, 1938 - Front Page
Architect: Unknown

Source of Information: Unknown

Builder: Unknown

Source of Information: Unknown
Original Owner: Charles Hy Ellis, John Pollock, Hugh Taylor, Gilbert Christenson, W. B. Priddy and R. J. Do
Source of Information: Douglas County Record - October 7, 1938 - Front Page

Construction History:

1905 Barn was constructed along with a warehouse, coal shed, and several lumber sheds. The central
part of the "barn" was a drive for delivery and pickup. The office was located in the northwest corner. Behind
the office was a lime room, where lime was stored. One side of the building was used for machinery. A
carpenter's shop was located on the second floor. In addition, a coal shed and a hardware warehouse was
constructed on the southeast side of the block. There were also two lumber sheds on the southwest side of the
block.

1908 Addition was constructed on the north end of the warehouse; used exclusively for flour.

1914 The lumber sheds on the southwest side of the block had been removed and a one and one half
story hipped roof building had been constructed.

1949 - 1985 Coal shed was removed.

Circa1950 Long lumber shed was constructed to the south of the barn and next to the hipped roof building
constructed in 1914.

1986 Block was replatted into three lots. "Barn" was Lot 1, Castle Rock Fuel and Feed (5DA.2666) was
Lot 2 and the land to the south of these buildings were Lot 3.

1998 - 2005 - Second floor window above main entrance removed (20-lite window) and replaced with double
hung windows.

2000 Long lumber shed to the south of the "barn"” and the small hipped roof building were demolished.

Original Location: Yes Date of Move:

V. HISTORICAL ASSOCIATIONS

Scheuber + Darden Architects 10800 E. Bethany Drive, Suite 380
Aurora, Colorado 80014 * 303-755-7395



' Resource Number: 5DA0688

31.
33.

Architectural Inventory Form

Temporary Résource Number: 755
Original Use: Commerce/Trade/Specialty Store 32. Intermediate Use: Commerce/Trade/Specialty Store
Current Use: Commerce/Trade/Specialty Store
Site type(s): Mercantile Store, Lumber Company, Antique Store

34.
35.

Historic Background:

To understand the complete history of this property it is important to also read about the property at 420 Third

Street (5DA.2666) Castle Rock Fuel and Feed. These businesses comprised Block 21 of the Town of Castle Rock.

The block is bordered by Third Street on the north, Perry Street on the west, Second Street on the south and the
railroad easement on the east.

Property Ownership

1883-1990 The Denver and Rio Grande Railway Company (included four blocks)
1990-1991 Van Pelt Investment

1991-1994 RobertT. and Bette C. Van Pelt

1994 -1997 William C. (father) and Wayne C. (son) Bennington

1997 - present Wayne C. Bennington

Businesses occupying the Barn

1905 - Douglas County Mercantile

1942 - Richardson Lumber Company - C. H. Richardson
1969 - Richardson Lumber Company - Duane Richardson
1984 - Douglas Lumber

1986 - Country Palace Antiques

Prior to the construction of the Douglas County Mercantile Building, the property had a dwelling (section house),
a bunkhouse for the railroad and a tool house for the railroad. These buildings appear on the 1890, 1895, and
1902 Sanborn Maps and were located at the northeast corner of Block 21. By 1907, according to the Sanborn
Map, the Douglas County Mercantile Company occupied the entire block except for the northeast corner where
the two dwellings remained. By 1907, the associated tool shed had been removed. There was a total of eight
buildings located on the property. Two of the buildings were residences, as discussed above, located to the east
of the barn. The other buildings were a hardware warehouse, coal shed, two lumber storage buildings (located
on Perry Street side of the property), and an outhouse. By 1914, the two lumber buildings had been removed
and replaced by a smaller one and one half story building. According to the 1930 Sanborn Map, the hardware
warehouse had been modified and an addition had been added onto the north end of the building. The building
was called a grain warehouse.

Douglas County Mercantile company was organized in 1905 by Charles Hy Ellis, John Pollock, Hugh Taylor, Gilbert
Christenson, W. B. Priddy, and R. J. Dobell. The company took over the lumber, lime and cement business of
Wallace and Holcomb and moved it to this location. The property was leased from the railroad.

Mr. William B. Chamberlain, manager of the Douglas County Mercantile Company retired in October 1938 and
relinquished management to Mr. Grant Bragg. Mr. Chamberlain began his career working the lumber and
hardware business for Holcomb and Whitney in 1888 and later worked for Preston Day. In 1905, when the
Douglas County Mercantile organized, he became the manager. Mr. Bragg, who took over management, moved
from Ordway.

William Chamberlain was born on September 3, 1862 in Kankakee, Illinois. In 1873, his parents and their five
children moved to Douglas County, homesteading near Larkspur. He married Mrs. Amelia Beck Huston in 1889.
He was first employed by Holcomb and Whitney Mercantile Company, located in the old Odd Fellows Hall. The
name was later changed to Douglas County Mercantile Company and he was named as manager until his
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36.

retirementin 1939.

Clyde Henry (C. H.) Richardson owned the Castle Rock Hardware and the Douglas County Mercantile in 1937. By
1942 he had combined the businesses and renamed it Richardson Lumber. He was the sole proprietor until after
World War Il when his nephew Duane joined the business who eventually became the sole owner in 1969.

C. H. Richardson was born January 2, 1890 on a farm in lowa near Tabor. He was the oldest of 13 children. His
father was Frank . Richardson and his mother was Josie Acord Richardson. In 1910, Richardson came to
Colorado and lived in Delta, but soon returned to lowa. He again returned to Colorado and lived in Fort Morgan
and worked at the sugar factory and a lumber company there. Deciding he wanted to become a lumber dealer,
he went to work for Foster Lumber Company. He worked for them in Hudson, Platteville, and Imperial, Nebraska
before settling in Wyoming. He returned to Colorado in 1918. After working with Foster Lumber Company for
15 years, he bought a partnership with Barney Baird in Parker in 1920. In 1936, after his partnership with Baird
had dissolved, he moved his business to Castle Rock primarily due to the relocation of the Colorado and Southern
Railroad. In 1942 he purchased the Douglas County Mercantile from the Clarke estate.

He married Ruth Bigelow Vertrees, a teacher in Englewood, in 1933. During his life, Richardson contributed
much of his time to civic duties. He was on the Castle Rock Town Board, Chamber of Commerce, and the
Volunteer Fire Department. He was also a past president of the Douglas County Lion's Club and the Past Master
of the Douglas County Lodge 153 A. F. and A. M.

As stated above, when Richardson retired, his nephew took over the business. Duane came to live with C. H. and
Ruth in 1918 and they raised him as a son. Duane, after serving in the military in World War Ii, came to work in
the mercantile. Duane was a member of the Douglas County Fair Board and a supporter of the Douglas County
4H program.

Sources of Information:

VL. SIGNIFICANCE

37.

38.

Local Landmark Designation: No
Designation Authority:

Date of Designation:

Applicable National Register Criteria:

W A. Associated with events that have made a significant contribution to the broad pattern of our history;

U B. Associated with the lives of persons significant in our past;

v C. Embodies the distinctive characteristics of a type, period, or method of construction, or represents the
work of a master, or that possesses high artistic values, or represents a significant and distinguished entity
whose components may lack individual distinction;

D. Has yielded, or may be likely to yield, information important in history or prehistory.
Qualifies under Criteria Considerationa A through G (see Manual).
Does not meet any of the above National Register Criteria.

oo
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E£8A. 2.18.160 Castle Rock Criteria for Designation:

A. The character, interest or value of the proposed landmark as part of the development heritage or
cultural characteristics of the town;

B. The proposed landmarks as a location of a significant local, county, state, or national event;

C. The identification of the proposed landmark with a person or persons significantly contributing to the
local, county, state or national history;

D. The proposed landmark as an emodiment of the distinguishing characteristics of an architectural style
valuable for the study of a period, type of method of construction, or the use of indigenous materials, the

use of locally quarried rhyolite rock being of special importance to the Town;
E. The proposed landmark as an identification of the work of an architect, landscape architect or master

builder whose work has influenced the development in the Town, County, State, or Nation;

F. The proposed landmark's architectural, cultural or archeological significance;

G. The proposed landmark as an example of either architectural or structural innovation;

H. The relationship of the proposed landmark to other distinctive structures, districts, or site which would
also be determined to be of historic significance; and

¥ 1. The age of the structure. A fifty-year minimum is generally required.

& [

] LY

0O

39. Area(s) of significance: Architecture Commerce

40.
41.
42,

43.

Period of significance: 1905, 1905 - 1959

Level of signficance: Local

Statement of significance:

Commerce: This building is significant for its contribution to the growth of Castle Rock. The building was
constructed in 1905 to house the Douglas County Mercantile. The store remained in this building until 1942
when the name was changed to Richardson Lumber. Douglas County Mercantile was one of the largest
mercantile in Castle Rock and sold almost anything the customer required. When Chamberlain retired in 1938,
the business was taken over by Richardson. The building housed the oldest mercantile (1905 - 1942) and the
only lumber store for Castle Rock (1942 - 1986).

Architecture: Although this building has no particular style, the building is constructed in the form of a barn.
The building has large doors at the north and south ends and has a monitor roof with operable windows. The
building is clad in horizontal board siding. The building was the largest building in Castle Rock, except for the
Courthouse, until recent years. Except for the large window over the north entrance, the building has had no
modifications. The building today is still a landmark for the town and is one of the oldest intact buildings.
Assessment of historic integrity related to significance:

The building's level of integrity, relative to the seven aspects of integrity, as defined by the National Park
Service and the Colorado Historical Society (setting, location, design, materials, workmanship, feeling and
association), has been retained. The design, materials, workmanship, and feeling of the building have not
changed. The large building is a local landmark for the town because of its size and because of its history
associated with the growth of Castle Rock. The land on which the building is located is still intact with the
ancillary buildings nearby and the back lot where lumber was once stored. The design, materials and the
workmanship is also intact, as there have been few changes to the building. The only change has been the
window over the north door.

Vil. NATIONAL REGISTER ELIGIBILITY ASSESSMENT

44.

45.

National Register eligibility field assessment: Not Eligible

Local landmark eligibility field assessment: Eligible
Is there National Register district potential: N/A
Discuss: This resource was surveyed and documented as part of a project in which buildings within the

downtown area of Castle Rock were surveyed. The survey area was from Front Street on the
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east, to Fifth Street on the north, to Eibert Street on the west and Third Street on the south. The
boundaries of a historic district have not yet been determined since many areas of the town
have not yet been surveyed. Additionally, this building might be associated with an adjacent
unsurveyed area. A preliminary evaluation of whether this property would be a contributing
resource, if found to be within the boundaries of a district, has been made to assist future

studies.
Is there Local District Potential: Yes
If there is National Register district potential, is this building contributing: contributing
46. If the building is in existing National Register district, is it contributing: N/A

VIii. RECORDING INFORMATION
47.  Photographic References: 5DA0688_east elevation; 5DA0688_east elevation2; 5DA0688_north elevation;
5DA0688_west elevation; 5DA0688_west elevation 2

Photographer: Barbara Darden
Negatives Filed At: There are no negatives - photos are digitally reproduced.
48. Report Title: "Town of Castle Rock - Survey of Historic Resources” (August 29, 2005); Preservation Partnership

49. Date(s): April 2009 50. Recorders: Barbara Darden
51. Organization: Scheuber + Darden Architects
52. Address: 10800 E. Bethany Drive, Suite 380, Aurora, Colorado 80014
53. Phone Number(s): 303-755-7395
NOTE: Please attach a sketch map, a photocopy of the USGS quad map indicating the resource's location, and photographs
Colorado Historical Society - Office of Archeology and Historic Preservation
1300 Broadway, Denver, Colorado 80203 (303) 866-3395
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